Flournoy Union
Elementary School District

PO Box 2260; 15850 Paskenta Rd. Flournoy, CA 96029 www.flournoyschool org 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

PUBLIC HEARING BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, February 12, 2019

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence,
responsible citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE: Tuesday, February 12, 2019 at 6:15 p.m.

TYPE: Regular Board Meeting

LOCATION: Flournoy Elementary School; 15850 Paskenta Rd, Flournoy, CA 96029
PQSTED: 02/08/2019 Flournoy School, Flournoy Store and Paskenta Store

1. PUBLIC MEETING CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDING OFFICER , at p.m.
Roll call
Lindsey Belter
Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin
Tyson Carter
Andrew Meredith
Sara Valoroso

PUBLIC COMMENT PERTAINING TO AGENDA
Comments on Closed Session Agenda Items, (below). Any person wishing to speak to any item on the
Closed Session Agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation.
Comments from the Floor: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item not on the Agenda
will be granted three minutes to make a presentation. No action may be taken at this meeting on
items addressed during these comments.
Comments on Agenda Items: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item on the Agenda will
be granted three minutes to make a presentation.

2. CLOSED SESSION None
3. PUBLIC SESSION - REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEMS None
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Recognize staff present: Lane Bates, Superintendent

Rachel Davis, Teacher

Melinda Flournoy, Business Manager
Amanda Taylor, Teacher

Cody Weston, Custodian

Mei Vance, Instructional Aide

Erin Murphy, Instructional Aide
Ashleigh Fuchs



10.

11.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA ¥ / /
Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF: Tuesday, January 8, 2019
/. /. ofl

Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain
COMMENTS

A. From members of the Board of Education
B. From the Superintendent and Business Manager
C. From the Staff/Teachers

GENERAL FUNCTION CONSENT ITEMS (Attachments)
A. Bills and warrants for January
B. MOUs/Agreements: None / / /
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes _fAbstain

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS  (Attachments)
1. Consider approval of the School Accountability Report Card (SARC)for the 2017-18
school year published in the 2018-19 school year. / /. /
Motion/Second Aye/Noes _fAbstain

2. Discuss and Consider approval of the adoption of the Flournoy Elementary Low
Performing Student Block Grant Plan /. / /.
Motion/Second Aye/Noes /Abstain

3. Consider approval of the final reading of the following updated board policies.
e BP/AR 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
BP/AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan
AR 1220 Citizen Advisory Committee
AR 4200 Classified Personnel
AR 5113 Absences and Excuses
BB 9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials
BB 9324 Minutes and Recordings
BP/AR 5141.52 Suicide Prevention
BP/AR 5144 Discipline /. /. /

. : A i

ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. Karla Stroman will give a brief presentation on Expect More Tehama and an invite to the
School Board Appreciation Dinner on March 28, 2019

B. Friday, February 15 - FIELD TRIP to TCDE for Art Celebration

C. Monday, February 18 through 22 - NO SCHOOL for Presidents’ Birthday Week

D. Thursday, February 28 - 5-8 Grade FIELD TRIP - Internet Safety, Cyber Bullying Assembly
at Reeds Creek School

E. Monday, March 4 - MINIMUM DAY

DISCUSSION ON NEXT BOARD MEETING




A. Next meeting date: Tuesday, March 12,2019 at 6:15 p.m. Combined meeting with
Elkins Elementary School Board Members
B. Possible items for action/discussion
e Updated Policies

12. FURTHER COMMENTS
A. From members of the Board of Education
B. From the Superintendent Adjournment at p.m.



PO Box 2260; 15850 Paskenta Rd.
Flournoy, CA 96029

Flournoy Union www.flournoyschool.org
& Elementary School District 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

FLOURNO

\. ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
FLOURNOY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence, responsible
citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE OF MEETING: Tuesday, January 8, 2019 at 6:15 p.m.

TYPE OF MEETING: Regular Board Meeting

PLACE: Flournoy Elementary School; 15850 Paskenta Road, Flournoy, CA 96029
MEMBERS PRESENT: Sara Valoroso (late), Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin, Andrew Meredith, Tyson Carter
MEMBERS ABSENT: Lindsey Belter

RECOGNIZED STAFF: Lane Bates, Melinda Flournoy

1. Call the Meeting to Order and Roll Call

Board member Andrew Meredith called meeting to order at 6:16 p.m.
2. Closed Session None

3. Public comment pertaining to agenda None

4. Pledge of Allegiance
Board member Andrew Meredith led the Pledge of Allegiance.

5. Adoption of Agenda

On motion by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin and second by Tyson Carter, the agenda was approved. Aye: 3

6. Approval of Minutes from the meeting of: December 11, 2018

On motion by Tyson Carter and second by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin, the agenda was approved.
Aye:3

7. Comments:

A. From members of the Board of Education: None

B. From the Superintendent Lane Bates informed to the board that we will be having a joint board
meeting with Elkins Elementary School at our March meeting to discuss consolidating.
C. From the Staff/Teachers: None
8. Donations and Gifts to the District: Ncne

9. General Function Consent Items:

On Motion by Tyson Carter and second by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin, the monthly bills, warrants and Agreements
and MOU's were approved. Aye:3




10. Discussion/Action Items — New Business

A.

Consider acceptance of the 2017-18 Financial Audit for the FUESD

On motion by Cathy Bjornastad-Tobin and second by Tyson Carter the Board approved the 2017-18
Financial Audit for FUESD. Aye: 3

Review and approve the quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints Ed Code 35186(d)

On motion by Cathy Bjornastad-Tohin and second by Tyson Carter the Board approved the Williams Uniform
Complaints Ed Code 35186(d). Ave: 3

11. Announcements

Thursday, January 10 - Elks Lodge Student of the Month Luncheon Congratulations Kaycee Murphy
Thursday, January 10 - Boy/Girls Basketball game @ Kirkwood Elementary School

Tuesday, January 15 - Boy/Girls Basketball game @ Bend Elementary School

Thursday, January 17 - Brown Act Training for Board Members

Friday, January 18 - No SERRF due to staff training

Wednesday, January 23 - Boy/Girls Basketball game @ Richfield Elementary School

12. Adjournment

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at _6:33 p.m. on motion by Sara Valoroso

Flournoy Union Elementary School District
Meeting of the Board of Education




WvZzZ:0lL 6102

¥ g84 (806 AONYNOTHIN) AONHNOTH YANITIW J0} pajelauss JuIsIg jooysas Aouinoid - 806
‘panoidde aq syoay) Buipsoaid
3dv¥Os3 w U1 JBU} PAPUBWILIODD] S1 1| "SBBISNIL JO PIEOg BU} JO UOHEZLOYINE PUE Adljod S, 10LISIA U} UiiM S8OUBPIOODE Ul Panss| usaq aAey sxoeyD Bulpeoaid ay) |
00°86¥'€ L NYHL-SSVYd/LNVHIYM 9L
SHZL8'Y Z AJd 03dS VId3134v0 €l
A L1922'GL L IVHINTD L0
- junowy pasuadx3g juno9g }2ay9 uopduosseq pund

Alewwing puny

96'9£5°¢Z vz S)29Y9 jo Jaquin [e3o ]
00'G.LL t 819AD 1s8d |BJOUDD S065-10 [0U0D }58d SPOOM  6L0Z/LE/LO 6298.L0%
€OLEDL saddng sse|p/ute 00Et-1L0 jueg SN 6LOZ/LE/LD 8.98/10%
00'86¥'¢ 00°LG swinjwald soueinsuy| £666-9/

00651 swinjwald souelnsu| 2556-9/

0028 swiniwald agueinsu| 225679/

00°9F¥'2 swnjwald soueinsu| £156-92 9ISOL 6L0Z/LE/LD 2198210%
86°/51°L g oupe(3 £055-10 09 0U0B|T P seD oIoed  BLOZ/LE/LD 9/98/10%
86°05¢ S8U2UNT |00Y9S 404 HIIN 00Lt-€L "poud Areq Bunnguisia “Wr 6L0Z/LE/L0 G/98.L0%
L¥'198'y SL8L¥'E uep-aoN “iib pug eusjajed 1of NOW GZ85-€lL

zlerl'l $8U3UN| |00YIS IO} POCH 00t-€L 101181 |00Y0S SUMIT 6L0Z/LE/LD ¥198/10%
00628 slieday g uopoadsu| Japjuuds a4 |enuuy 0095-10 ou| ‘uonoBlold ali4 N puoweld  6L0Z/LE/LD £198/10%
6296 Buipeay Je1e)N Z0S5-10 uebiind  610Z/LE/L0 22982107
00°05¢€ 8102 990-100 S8dIAIeS 8jel-] 0085-10 Buginsuod WSO  6L0Z/LE/LO 1298L10%
01°652 uonos|3 gLOZ 18quiaroN £085-10 eweya] Jo Ajunod  6L0Z/LE/LD 0£98/10%
Sy ¥z’ abesn pue ases| Jaldo) 009S-10 "0U| swelsAg sseuisng [BISBOD  6L0Z/LE/L0 6998/10%
0005 Buuopuopy uonels [enuad Ajyuop 2055-10 Auedwog Ayejes eluioqied  61L02/LE/LO 8998/ 10%
09'8. Buuoyuopy serepn Bunjuug 20S5-10 "ouj ‘Aiojesoge] oised  6L0Z/LE/LO 1998/10%
6115 g auoyd 1L06S-10 1BUeD/1B1Y 610Z/LE/LO 9998/ 1 0%
£9°60€ 2oIM1eg JaysinBunx3 ally 0095-10 "ou| ‘louo) aul4 snBIp  6L02/5L/L0 G68LL10F
0L'86¢ uea Joj [ony ‘Ae|d jooyos 00EV-10 wyueg SN 6L0Z/SL/LO ¥68L210F
6L P21 auedoid #055-10 seo ¥ 9|dluL  6L0Z/SL/LO €68./10%
#G€69 lilg oMel3 £055-10 00 2o8|3 R s oYIvRd  BL0Z/SL/L0 Z68LL10F
6.'85¢ laysemysiq uo sieday 0095-10 juswdinb3 poed [BDION  6L0OZ/SL/LO L68LLL0Y
08'1z1'e 6102 Alenigad 1o} ss800Y J18UIBIU| 0085-10 0T 1AN'AT 6L0Z/GL/L0 068.210F
L06LZ g abeqies 9055-10 s)sep| UBRID  61L0Z/SL/LO 688.LLL01
90°LL Jsues|D jedie 00EP-10 aiempleH 8oy Buluwio)d  6L0Z/SL/LO 8882/10%
S8'v. g suoyd L06S-LO 1BUBD/1R1Y  6L0Z/5L/LO 1882/10%
00062'¢ sea7 YSOV 0085-10 wpy onp3 104 UoIEpUNO4 YSIY  6L0Z/5L/LO 9882/10%
unowy junowy jusawiwod 109lqo-pung Jo 1apiQ ay} o} Aed ajeq Jaquunp
¥oayo pasuadx3y ¥29Yyn }oayn

6102/1€/1L0 Ybnoauys 61.0z/10/10 P33ed SHI3UD

Joday pieog oz Aedbay



WYZ¢Z:0l 6L0C

¥ d@d (806 AONYNOT4W) AONHNO14 YANITIN 40} pajeiauss yLsIg [ooyas Aouinold - 806
[z 10 Z ebeg -panoidde aq syosyp Buipsoaid |
3dv053 | U} JeU} PEPUBLILIODD) ST | "SIISN | JO PIeog SU} O UOHEZLOYINE pue ASII0d SIOLISIC SU) Y)IM S80UBPIOODE Ul PaNss| useq eney s308yQ Buipeoaid syl |
95°9£6'€ (junowy 3}23y3) 18N
00" Ayiger] xe| ssjes piedun sse
96'9¢6'ce ve S¥28YQ JO Jaquinn [ej0]
junowy unowy jusWWo) 19elqo-pungy 10 JapiQ ayj 0} Aed aleq Jaquiny
}ooyn pasuadxg 328y ¥oeyo

6102/1€/10 UBNOJY} 61.02/10/L0 P3IEA SHI3YD

Joday pieog azLRegbay



q.1

Flournoy Elementary School

15850 Paskenta Rd. e Flournoy, CA 96029-2260 » 530.833.5331 ¢ Grades K-8

q}‘ Rachel Davis, Principal

rdavis@flournoyschool.org

w www.flournoyschool.org

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card
Published During the 2018-19 School Year

School Description

Flournoy Union Elementary Flournoy Elementary is a one school district. Curriculum is focused on California State Standards

Sekool District and targeted toward student needs. The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide

15850 Paskenta Road academic excellence, responsible citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.
Flournoy

530-833-5331
www.flournoyschool.org

District Governing Board
Sara Valoroso
Lindsey Belter

Andrew Meredith

Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin

Tyson Carter

District Administration

Lane Bates
Superintendent
Rachel Davis
Principal

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School Page1of8



About the SARC

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state

law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC

contains information about the condition and performance of each

California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)

alllocal educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control

and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet

annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address

state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be

consistent with data reported in the SARC.

¢ For more information about SARC requirements, see the California
Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/.

e For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web
page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.

*  For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and
community members should contact the school principal or the
district office

Grade Level Number of Students
Kindergarten 6
Grade 1 3
Grade 2 3
Grade 3 3
Grade 4 2
Grade 5 2
Grade 6 1
Grade 7 6
Total Enrollment 26
| 2017-18Student ent by Group

Group Percent of Total Enrollment
Black or African American 0.0
American Indian or Alaska Native 0.0
Asian 0.0
Filipino 0.0
Hispanic or Latino 15.4
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 3.8
White 80.8
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 423
English Learners 38
Students with Disabilities 15.4
Foster Youth 0.0

A. Conditions of Learning

State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority:

Basic (Priority 1):

* Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

e Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and

e  School facilities are maintained in good repair

Flournoy Elementary School 16-17 | 17-18 | 18-19
With Full Credential 1.5 1.5 2
Without Full Credential 0 0 0
Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence 0 0 0
Flournoy Union Elementary School District 16-17 | 17-18 | 18-19
With Full Credential ¢ * 2
Without Full Credential ¢ ¢ 0
Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence ¢ ¢ 0

; eacher I l..-ss,xnmA‘, nts and Vacant Teache

_ tions at this School
Flournoy Elementary School 16-17 17-18 18-19
Teachers of English Learners 0 0 0
Total Teacher Misassignments 0 0 0
Vacant Teacher Positions 0 0 0

¥ Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers

who lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student
group, etc.

*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of
Teachers of English Learners.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School

Page 2 of 8




Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2018-19)

Flournoy Union Elementary School held a public hearing on September 18, 2018, and determined that the school had sufficient and good quality
textbooks, instructional materials, or science lab equipment pursuant to the settlement of Williams vs. the State of California. All students, including
English learners, are given their own individual standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in core subjects for use in the classroom
and to take home. Textbooks and supplementary materials are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of Education,
making the textbooks used in the school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the State are reviewed by all teachers and a
recommendation is made to the School Board by a selection committee composed of teachers paraprofessional, administrators and parents/community
members. All recommended materials are available for parent examination at the district/school office prior to adoption. The table displays information
about the quality, currency, and availability of the standards-aligned textbooks and other instructional materials used at the schoal.

Core Curriculum Area Textbooks and Instructional Materials/Year of Adoption

Reading/Language Arts MacMillan/McGraw Hill
Adoption Year 2002

Pearson/Prentice Hall
Adoption Year 2010

The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes

Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0.0%
Mathematics Houghton Mifflin / Harcourt School Publishers

Adoption Year 2014

Jump Math

The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes

Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0.0%
Science CPO Science

Adoption Year 2007

Houghton Mifflin
Adoption Year 2007

The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes
Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0.0%
History-Social Science Glencoe/McGraw Hill

Adoption Year 2006

MacMillan/McGraw Hill
Adoption Year 2006

The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: Yes

Percent of students lacking their own assigned textbook: 0.0%
Science Laboratory Equipment N/A

The textbooks listed are from most recent adoption: N/A

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year)

Flournoy Union Elementary was originally constructed in 1922. The school is comprised of 1 classroom 1 library/stage, 1 staff lounge, 1
cafeteria/multipurpose room and 1 playground. Cleaning Process: The custodian (part-time) ensures that the school is maintained to provide for a clean
and safe school. Maintenance and Repair: District maintenance staff ensures that the repairs necessary to keep the school in good repair are completed
in a timely manner. Deferred Maintenance Budget: The district participates in the State School Deferred Maintenance Program, which provides matching
funds on a dollar-for-dollar basis, to assist school districts with expenditures for major repair or replacement of existing school building components.
Typically this includes roofing, plumbing, heating, electrical systems, interior or exterior painting, and floor systems.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School Page 3 of 8




i Repair Needed and
System Inspected Repair Status Action Taken or Planned
Systems: Good
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: Good
Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: Good
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation
Electrical: Good
Electrical
Restrooms/Fountains: Good
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains
Safety: Good
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials
Structural: Good
Structural Damage, Roofs
External: Good
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences
Overall Rating Good

B. Pupil Outcomes

State Priority: Pupil Achievement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority:
Pupil Achievement (Priority 4}:

Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student
Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general
education population and the California Alternate Assessments
[CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given
in grades three through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students
may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with
the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most
significant cognitive disabilities); and

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses
that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of
California and the California State University, or career technical
education sequences or programs of study

=

gl L e |

Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standards

Math 20.0 8.0 20.0 8.0 37.0 38.0

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the
total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter
Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the
standard (i.e., achieved Level 3—-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number
of students who participated in both assessments.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School

Page 4 of 8




Subject [

16-17 17-18 16-17

Science| N/A N/A N/A
Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Note: The 2016-17 and 2017-18 data are not available. The CDE is developing a new
science assessment based on the Next Generation Science Standards for California
Public Schools (CA NGSS). The CAST was pilot-tested in spring 2017 and field-tested
in spring 2018. The CAST will be administered operationally during the 2018-19
school year. The CAA for Science was pilot-tested for two years (i.e., 2016-17 and
2017-18) and the CAA for Science will be field-tested in 2018-19.

Note: Science test results include the CAST and the CAA for Science. The “Percent

exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the
standard {i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAA for Science divided by the
total number of students who participated on both assessments.

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other
Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8):

. Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education

Grade

Level 40f6 50f6 60f6
5 EE * K %%
7 K ® % * %

* Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or
less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for
statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Percent Percent

] SR e Enrollment Tested Tested Met or Exceeded
All Students 16 12 75.00 58.33
Male =i = == =
Female - - # =
Hispanic or Latino & - = -
White 13 9 69.23 44.44

Two or More Races -

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged --

Students with Disabilities -

Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of
students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level
3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical

accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not
the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School

Page 50f 8




Total Number Percent Percent
Enroliment Tested Tested Met or Exceeded

All Students 16 12 75 8.33

Male - - -- --

Female o == nn =

Hispanic or Latino s ax - -

White 13 9 69.23 110

Two or More Races = = = =

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - = == --

Students with Disabilities - E aE =

Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number
of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical
accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not
the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

C. Engagement

State Priority: Parental Involvement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3):
s Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site

Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2018-19)

The staff of Flournoy Union Elementary School District believes that providing students with a quality education is a team effort between home and
school. Your close and constant involvement with your child’s learning and teachers is the best way to ensure that your child’s needs are met. Because
parent involvement is especially critical during the adolescent years, we encourage parents to learn about the school and its programs, become more
involved in school functions, and maintain open lines of communication.

One of the easiest ways to become involved at Flournoy is to volunteer. Parent volunteers assist on field trips, run book fairs, organize picture days.

State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6):
e Pupil suspension rates;

e Pupil expulsion rates; and

¢ Other local measures on the sense of safety.

School Safety Plan

Safety of students and staff is a primary concern of Flournoy Union Elementary. The school is always in compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations
pertaining to hazardous materials and state earthquake standards. The School Site Safety plan was last reviewed and updated on October 2018 by the
school staff and board of education. All revisions were communicated to the both the classified and certificated staff. The school’s disaster preparedness
plan includes steps for ensuring student and staff safety during a disaster. Fire and disaster drills are conducted on a (monthly/regular) basis throughout
the school year. Lockdown drills are held throughout the year. Students are supervised before and after school by certificated and classified staff.
Certificated staff/classified staff help with supervision during lunch and break periods. There is a designated area for student drop off and pick up. Visitors
must sign in and out and wear a name badge while on campus.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School Page 6 of 8




School 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Suspensions Rate 0.0 0.0 0.0
Expulsions Rate 0.0 0.0 0.0
District 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Suspensions Rate 0.0 0.0 0.0
Expulsions Rate 0.0 0.0 0.0
State 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
Suspensions Rate 3.7 3.7 3.5
Expulsions Rate 0.1 0.1 0.1

D. Other SARC Information
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the state priorities for LCFF.

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE)

Academic Counselor

0
Counselor (Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 0
Library Media Teacher (Librarian) 0
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional) 0
Psychologist 0
Social Worker 0
Nurse 0.025
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 0
Resource Specialist (non-teaching) 0.20
Other 0

Average Number of Students per Staff Member

Academic Counselor 0
One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

*

; Number of Classrooms*
Average Class Size

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18
K 26 1
Other 22 1.

Number of classes indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).

*

Professional Development provided for Teachers
As part of the growth process, opportunities for training and staff development are provided at both the district/school site to administrators, teachers,

and classified staff. Staff members are offered professional growth opportunities in curriculum, teaching strategies, and methodologies through work
days before and after the student calendar as well as monthly minimum days.

The table lists the support service personnel available at Flournoy Elementary.
The Federal No Child Left Behind Act requires that all teachers in core subject areas meet certain requirements in order to be considered as “Highly

Qualified” no later than the end of the 2007-08 school year. Minimum qualifications include: possession of a Bachelor’s Degree, possession of an
appropriate California teaching credential, and demonstrated competence in core academic subjects.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School Page 7 of 8




o State Average for
District iy
Category Districts In Same
Amount
Category
Beginning Teacher Salary 541,693 $44,375
Mid-Raﬁe Teacher Salary $53,116 $65,926
Highest Teacher Salary $67,993 $82,489
Average Principal Salary (ES) S0 $106,997
Average Principal Salary (MS) S0 $109,478
Average Principal Salary (HS) S0
Superintendent Salary $18,000 $121,894
Percent of District Budget
Teacher Salaries 17.0 32.0
Administrative Salaries 16.0 7.0

*

Benefits webpage at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

Types of Services Funded

¢ lottery

¢ Title VI Small Rural Schools

o  Safety & Violence Prevention
¢ Special Ed. State

¢ Instructional Materials Block Grant

¢ School Based Coordination
¢  Deferred Maintenance

DataQuest

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries &

2016-17 Expenditures Per

; Expenditures Per Pupil Average
Level ——— - Teacher
,‘, B
i .af%c% Salary
School Site $11,620
District ¢ $52,590
State 4 57,125 $63,218

Percent Difference: School Site/District

Percent Difference: School Site/ State

¥ Cells with ¢ do not require data.

The California Department of Education issued guidance to LEAs on August 1,
2018, regarding how to calculate school-level per-pupil expenditures that will be

reported on 2018-19 report cards.

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains additional information about
this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for
accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners).

Internet Access

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible (e.g., the Califarnia State Library). Access to the Internet at
libraries and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length
of time that a workstation may be used {depending on availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print

documents.

2017-18 School Accountability Report Card for Flournoy Elementary School

Page 8 of 8




Juapnis Alaas 1oy Jandwios suQ

"S|00} JUBWISSISSE
aulUo Yiim painseaw
SSOUAIDa}S UOHUBAISIU|

"JeaA [00Y2S §L-8l
ay} Joj $y00g awWwoays) aseyond

"uonuanaiul Buipsau

sjuapn)s Joj aonoeld S||Ns pazijenplAlpu
sapiaoid / UOIOY 3IUM SIUSLLISSOSSE

pue suossa| Ajlep ol ABojouyos) sajelbajul

g uonoY °/ pUB g SUOHOY JY¥DT Jno Ul sjeob
ay} yum subije sseyound siy "YieN pue y13
Ulog Ul 21em)j0s UOIUSAISIUI PasEq Uo.easal
0} SS800€ Sjuapn)s Ysii-le Bulwopad mo| anlb
[IM Spuny asay} Yum paseyaind syoog swiodyn

sluapnis
ysu-1e Buiwiopsd mo| 1oy

salbo)ens paseq-aouspIng

quEm_QE_ pue yoleasal

0} syjoog awolyn aseysdng

00'96°LS

$)00g 8WOoIYD) JO 8seydIng

9DIAIDS JO
SSOUBAIJOBJD JO JUBWAINSI

juswubily 4w

pasn aq [Im

spunj moy uo uondiosaqg

ainjipuadx3y
pajebpng

ainjipuadxg jo apiL

61028

(X114

juels yoo|g juapnig Buiulopuad moT
Jousiqg [ooyos Alejuawalg Aouano|4




9.3

Flournoy Elementary School District

Board Policy
Comprehensive Safety Plan

BP 0450
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus
where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to
maximizing school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies
for violence prevention and high expectations for student conduct, responsible behavior, and
respect for others.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds)

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(ct. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

(cf. 5131.41 - Use of Seclusion and Restraint)

(ctf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

(cf. 5136 - Gangs)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(ct. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive
safety plan that is applicable to each school site. (Education Code 32281)

The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and
forwarded to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288)

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state
law, Board policy, and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly
scheduled meeting.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)



(ct. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department
of Education of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code
32281. (Education Code 32288)

Access to Safety Plan(s)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and
materials is readily available for inspection by the public. (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to
criminal incidents shall not be publicly disclosed.

The Superintendent or designee shall share the comprehensive safety plans and any updates to the
plans with local law enforcement, the local fire department, and other first responder entities.
(Education Code 32281)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination

32260-32262 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
32270 School safety cadre

32280-32289 School safety plans

32290 Safety devices

35147 School site councils and advisory committees
35183 School dress code; uniforms

35291 Rules

35291.5 School-adopted discipline rules

41020 Annual audits

48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion

48950 Speech and other communication

49079 Notification to teacher; student act constituting grounds for suspension or expulsion
67381 Violent crime

GOVERNMENT CODE

54957 Closed session meetings for threats to security
PENAL CODE

422.55 Definition of hate crime

626.8 Disruptions

11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

Article 1, Section 28(c) Right to Safe Schools



CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

11987-11987.7 School Community Violence Prevention Program requirements
11992-11993 Definition, persistently dangerous schools

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7111-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

7912 Transfers from persistently dangerous schools

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against
Sex Discrimination, July 2016

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and
Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, rev. 2011
Community Schools: Partnerships Supporting Students, Families and Communities, Policy
Brief, October 2010

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2010

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action, 2002

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION PUBLICATIONS

Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook, 2004

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, January 2007
U.S. SECRET SERVICE AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Threat Assessment in Schools: A Guide to Managing Threatening Situations and to Creating
Safe School Climates, 2004

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, Safe Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services: http://www.caloes.ca.gov

California Healthy Kids Survey: http://chks.wested.org

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention
Federal Bureau of Investigation: http://www.fbi.gov

National Center for Crisis Management: http://www.schoolcrisisresponse.com

National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

U.S. Secret Service, National Threat Assessment Center:
http://www.secretservice.gov/protection/ntac

(11/11 7/16) 12/18

Board Approved 02/08/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Comprehensive Safety Plan

AR 0450
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

Content of the Safety Plan

Each comprehensive safety plan shall include an assessment of the current status of any crime
committed on campus and at school-related functions. (Education Code 32282)

The assessment may include, but not be limited to, reports of crime, suspension and expulsion
rates, and surveys of students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding their perceptions of school
safety.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)

The plan shall identify appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high
level of school safety and address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related
to school safety, including all of the following: (Education Code 32282)

L Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Penal Code 11164-11174.3

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

2 Routine and emergency disaster procedures including, but not limited to:
a. Adaptations for students with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
b. An earthquake emergency procedure system in accordance with Education Code 32282

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)

B. A procedure to allow public agencies, including the American Red Cross, to use school
buildings, grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other
emergencies affecting the public health and welfare

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)



(cf. 3516.1 - Fire Drills and Fires)

(cf. 3516.2 - Bomb Threats)

(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules)

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

5 Policies pursuant to Education Code 48915(d) for students who commit an act listed in
Education Code 48915(c) and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspension,
expulsion, or mandatory expulsion recommendations

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

4. Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous students pursuant to Education Code 49079

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)

5, A policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination, harassment, intimidation,
and bullying pursuant to Education Code 200-262.4

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(ct. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(ct. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

6. If the school has adopted a dress code prohibiting students from wearing "gang-related
apparel” pursuant to Education Code 35183, the provisions of that dress code and the definition of
"gang-related apparel"

(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

7. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of students, parents/guardians, and employees to
and from school

(cf. 5142 - Safety)
8. A safe and orderly school environment conducive to learning
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

9. The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Education Code 35291
ahd 35291.5



(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

10.  Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures
related to individuals with guns on campus and at school-related functions

Among the strategies for providing a safe environment, the comprehensive safety plan may also
include:

L. Development of a positive school climate that promotes respect for diversity, personal and
social responsibility, effective interpersonal and communication skills, self-esteem, anger
management, and conflict resolution

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs)

2. Disciplinary policies and procedures that contain prevention strategies, such as strategies
to prevent bullying, hazing, and cyberbullying, as well as behavioral expectations and
consequences for violations

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

3. Curriculum that emphasizes prevention and alternatives to violence, such as multicultural
education, character/values education, social and emotional learning, media analysis skills,
conflict resolution, community service learning, and education related to the prevention of dating
violence

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education)
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

4. Parent involvement strategies, including strategies to help ensure parent/guardian support
and reinforcement of the school's rules and increase the number of adults on campus

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

8. Prevention and intervention strategies related to the sale or use of drugs and alcohol which
shall reflect expectations for drug-free schools and support for recovering students

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)
(ct. 5131.61 - Drug Testing)

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

(ct. 5131.63 - Steroids)



6. Collaborative relationships among the city, county, community agencies, local law
enforcement, the judicial system, and the schools that lead to the development of a set of common
goals and community strategies for violence prevention instruction

7. District policy related to possession of firearms and ammunition on school grounds
(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds)

8. Measures to prevent or minimize the influence of gangs on campus

(cf. 5136 - Gangs)

9. Procedures for receiving verification from law enforcement when a violent crime has
occurred on school grounds and for promptly notifying parents/guardians and employees of that
crime

(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)

10.  Assessment of the school's physical environment, including a risk management analysis
and development of ground security measures such as procedures for closing campuses to
outsiders, installing surveillance systems, securing the campus perimeter, protecting buildings
against vandalism, and providing for a law enforcement presence on campus

(ct. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)

(ct. 3515 - Campus Security)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

11 Guidelines for the roles and responsibilities of mental health professionals, community
intervention professionals, school counselors, school resource officers, and police officers on
school campuses. Guidelines may include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Strategies to create and maintain a positive school climate, promote school safety, and
increase student achievement

b. Strategies to prioritize mental health and intervention services, restorative and
transformative justice programs, and positive behavior interventions and support

c. Protocols to address the mental health care of students who have witnessed a violent act at
any time, including, but not limited to, while on school grounds, while coming or going from
school, during a lunch period whether on or off campus, or during or while going to or coming
from a school-sponsored activity



12.  Strategies for suicide prevention and intervention
(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention)

13.  Procedures to implement when a person interferes with or disrupts a school activity,
remains on campus after having been asked to leave, or creates a disruption with the intent to
threaten the immediate physical safety of students or staff

(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)
14.  Crisis prevention and intervention strategies, which may include the following:

a. Identification of possible crises that may occur, determination of necessary tasks that need
to be addressed, and development of procedures relative to each crisis, including the involvement
of law enforcement and other public safety agencies as appropriate

(cf. 3515.5 - Sex Offender Notification)
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)
(cf. 5131.41 - Use of Seclusion and Restraint)

b. Threat assessment strategies to determine the credibility and seriousness of a threat and
provide appropriate interventions for the potential offender(s)

C. Assignment of staff members responsible for each identified task and procedure

d. Development of an evacuation plan based on an assessment of buildings and grounds and
opportunities for students and staff to practice the evacuation plan

e. Coordination of communication to schools, Governing Board members, parents/guardians,
and the media

(cf. 1112 - Media Relations)
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements)

f. Development of a method for the reporting of violent incidents

g Development of follow-up procedures that may be required after a crisis has occurred, such
as counseling

15.  Staff development in violence prevention and intervention techniques, including
preparation to implement the elements of the safety plan

(ct. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)



16.  Environmental safety strategies, including, but not limited to, procedures for preventing
and mitigating exposure to toxic pesticides, lead, asbestos, vehicle emissions, and other hazardous
substances and contaminants

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)

(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)

(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management)

(11/11 7/16) 12/18

Board Approved 02/08/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Citizen Advisory Committees

AR 1220
Community Relations

Committee Charge

When committees are appointed, committee members shall receive written information which
includes, but is not limited to:

1. The committee members' names

2. The procedure to be used in the selection of the committee chairperson and other
committee officers

3. The name(s) and contact information of staff member(s) assigned to support the work of
the committee

4, The goals and specific charge(s) of the committee, including its topic(s) for study
5. The specific period of time that the committee is expected to serve

6. Legal requirements regarding meeting conduct and public notifications

% Resources available to help the committee perform its tasks

8. Timelines for progress reports and/or final report

9. Relevant Board policies and administrative regulations

Committees Subject to Brown Act Requirements
Brown Act requirements pertaining to open meetings, notices, and public participation pursuant to
Government Code 54950-54963 shall be complied with by any committee created by formal

action of the Governing Board, including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 56190-56194 related to
special education

(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education)

2. Advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 8070 related to career
technical education



(ctf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)

3. Committee established to assist in development of a student wellness policy pursuant to 42
USC 1758b

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

4. Committee established pursuant to Education Code 17387-17391 related to the use or
disposition of excess real property

(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property)

5. Citizens' oversight committee established to examine the expenditure of general obligation
bond or school facilities improvement bond revenues passed with a 55 percent majority of the
voters pursuant to Education Code 15278 and 15359.3

(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts)
(ct. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

(cf. 9130 - Board Committees)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Committees Not Subject to Brown Act Requirements

The following committees shall comply with procedural meeting requirements established in
Education Code 35147:

1. Parent advisory committee and English learner parent advisory committee established
pursuant to Education Code 52063 to review and comment on the local control and accountability
plan

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

2. School site councils established pursuant to Education Code 65000-65001 to develop and
approve a school plan for student achievement

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

¥ District or school advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 52176
related to programs for English learners

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

4, School advisory committees established pursuant to Education Code 54425(Db) related to



compensatory education
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

g Any district advisory committee established pursuant to Education Code 54444.2 related to
migrant education programs

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

6. School committees established pursuant to Education Code 11503 related to parent
involvement

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Meetings of the above councils or committees shall be open to the public, and any member of the
public shall have the opportunity to address the council or committee during the meeting on any
item within its jurisdiction. Notice of the meeting shall be posted at the school site or other
appropriate accessible location at least 72 hours before the meeting, specifying the date, time, and
location of the meeting and containing an agenda that describes each item of business to be
discussed or acted upon. (Education Code 35147)

The above councils or committees shall not take action on any item not listed on the agenda unless
all members present unanimously find that there is a need to take immediate action and that this
need came to the council's or committee's attention after the agenda was posted. In addition to
addressing items on the agenda, members of the council, committee, or public may ask questions
or make brief statements that do not have a significant effect on district students or employees or
that can be resolved solely by providing information. (Education Code 35147)

Any council or committee violating the above procedural requirements must, at the demand of any
person, reconsider the item at the next meeting, first allowing for public input on the item.
(Education Code 35147)

Any materials provided to a council or committee shall be made available to any member of the
public upon request pursuant to the California Public Records Act, Government Code 6250-6270.
(Education Code 35147)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

Committees Created by Superintendent

Committees which are created by the Superintendent or designee to advise the administration, do
not report to the Board, and are not specified in Education Code 35147 shall not be subject to the

requirements of the Brown Act or Education Code 35147.

(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)
Board Approved 02/12/2019 (7/07 12/14) 12/18



Flournoy Elementary School

Administrative Regulation
Classified Personnel

AR 4200
Personnel

Exemption from Classified Service

Persons hired solely for purposes which are exempted from the classified service shall
nevertheless fulfill the obligations of classified employees related to physical examinations
pursuant to Education Code 45122, fingerprinting pursuant to Education Code 45125, and
tuberculosis tests pursuant to Education Code 49406. (Education Code 45106)

(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations)

(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)

(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Individuals hired solely for the following purposes shall not be part of the classified service:
(Education Code 45103)

1. Substitute or short-term employees who are employed and paid for fewer than 195 work
days per year, including holidays, sick leave, vacation, and other leaves of absences, irrespective
of the number of hours worked per day

2. Apprentices and professional experts employed on a temporary basis for a specific project
regardless of length of employment

3. Full-time students employed part time

4, Part-time students employed part time in any college work study program, or in a work
experience education program conducted by a community college district pursuant to Education
Code 51760-51769.5 that is financed by state or federal funds

(11702 12/17) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District

Administrative Regulation
Absences And Excuses

AR 5113
Students
Excused Absences

Subject to any applicable limitation, condition, or other requirement specified in law, a student's
absence shall be excused for any of the following reasons:

L Personal illness (Education Code 48205)
2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer (Education Code 48205)

(cf. 5112.2 - Exclusions from Attendance)

3. Medical, dental, optometrical, or chiropractic appointment (Education Code 48205)
4. Attendance at funeral services for a member of the student's immediate family (Education
Code 48205)

Such absence shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted in California or three days if
the service is conducted out of state. (Education Code 48205)

3, Jury duty in the manner provided by law (Education Code 48205)

6. [llness or medical appointment of a child to whom the student is the custodial parent
(Education Code 48205)

(ctf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

7 Upon advance written request by the parent/guardian and the approval of the principal or
designee, justifiable personal reasons including, but not limited to: (Education Code 48205)

a. Appearance in court
b. Attendance at a funeral service
B Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony

d. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than four hours per semester



B Attendance at an employment conference

f. Attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a
nonprofit organization

8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12302
(Education Code 48205)

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education)

3 To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the
uniformed services, as defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for
deployment to a combat zone or a combat support position or is on leave from or has immediately

returned from such deployment (Education Code 48205)

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the
- Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 48205)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

10.  Attendance at a naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education
Code 48205)
11.  Participation in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at the

student's place of worship or other suitable place away from school (Education Code 46014)
(cf. 6141.2 - Recognition of Religious Beliefs and Customs)

Absence for student participation in religious exercises or instruction shall not be considered an
absence for the purpose of computing average daily attendance if the student attends at least the
minimum school day as specified in AR 6112 - School Day, and is not excused from school for this
purpose on more than four days per school month. (Education Code 46014)

(cf. 6112 - School Day)
12. Work in the entertainment or allied industry (Education Code 48225.5)

Such absence shall be excused provided that the student holds a work permit authorizing
such work and is absent for a period of not more than five consecutive days and up to five absences

per school year. (Education Code 48225.5)

13.  Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public
school audience (Education Code 48225.5)

A student may be excused for up to five such absences per school year provided that the
student's parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school.



(Education Code 48225.5)

14. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the
student's specific circumstances (Education Code 48205, 48260)

For the purpose of the absences described above, immediate family means the student's
parent/guardian, brother or sister, grandparent, or any other relative living in the student's
household. (Education Code 48205)

Method of Verification

Student absence to care for a child for whom the student is the custodial parent shall not require a
physician's note. (Education Code 48205)

For other absences, the student shall, upon returning to school following the absence, present a
satisfactory explanation verifying the reason for the absence. Absences shall be verified by the
student's parent/guardian, other person having charge or control of the student, or the student if age
18 or older. (Education Code 46012; 5 CCR 306)

When an absence is planned, the principal or designee shall be notified prior to the date of the
absence when possible.

The following methods may be used to verify student absences:
1. Written note, fax, email, or voice mail from parent/guardian or parent representative.

) Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's
parent/guardian or parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the following:

a. Name of student

b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative
E. Name of verifying employee

d. Date(s) of absence

e Reason for absence

(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision)
3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method
which establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. The employee shall

document the verification and include the information specified in item #2 above.

4 Physician's verification.



a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments,
district staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may request a note from the
medical office to confirm the time of the appointment.

b. If a student shows a pattern of chronic absenteeism due to illness, district staff may require
physician verification of any further student absences.

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
Parental Notifications
At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate
in religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at
other suitable places away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or
denomination (Education Code 46014, 48980)

2z Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students enrolled in the
district that school authorities may excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical
services without the consent of the student's parent/guardian (Education Code 46010.1)

3, Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have a grade reduced or lose academic
credit for any excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are
satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time. Such notice shall include the full text
of Education Code 48205. (Education Code 48980)

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work)

(11/11 3/17) 1218
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School
Board Bylaw

Agenda/Meeting Materials

BB 9322
Board Bylaws

Agenda Content

Governing Board meeting agendas shall reflect the district's vision and goals and the Board's focus
on student learning.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

Each agenda shall state the meeting time and place and shall briefly describe each business item to
be transacted or discussed, including items to be discussed in closed session. (Government Code
54954.2)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9321- Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board on any
agenda item before or during the Board's consideration of the item. However, the agenda need
not provide an opportunity for public comment when the agenda item has previously been
considered at an open meeting of a committee comprised exclusively of Board members, provided
that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on the item at that meeting
and that the item has not been substantially changed since the committee considered it.
(Government Code 54954.3)

The agenda for a regular Board meeting shall also provide members of the public an opportunity to
provide comment on matters which are not on the agenda but which are within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. (Education Code 35145.5; Government Code 54954.3)

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Each agenda for a regular meeting shall list the address designated by the Superintendent or
designee for public inspection of documents related to an open session item that have been
distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting. (Government Code 54957.5)

“#*¥Note: Government Code 54954.2 requires that the agenda include information regarding
how, when, and to whom a request for a disability-related accommodation or modification may be
made. See BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices. The following paragraph should be modified to reflect
district practice as to when and to whom such a request should be made.***



Individuals who require disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary
aids and services, in order to participate in the Board meeting can request such accomodations
from the superintendent at the Flournoy elementary school office 24 hours prior to the meeting,.
(Government Code 54954.2)

Agenda Preparation

The Board president and the Superintendent, as secretary to the Board, shall work together to
develop the agenda for each regular and special meeting.

(cf. 9121 - President)
(cf. 9122 - Secretary)

Any Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of
the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request shall be submitted in writing
to the Superintendent or designee with supporting documents and information, if any, at least one
week before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted less than a week before the scheduled
meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient time for
consideration and research of the issue.

The Board president and Superintendent shall decide whether a request from a member of the
public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Items not within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board may not be placed on the agenda. In addition, before placing the item on
the agenda, the Board president and Superintendent shall determine if the item is merely a request
for information or whether the issue is covered by an existing policy or administrative regulation.

The Board president and Superintendent shall also decide whether an agenda item is appropriate
for discussion in open or closed session, and whether the item should be an action item subject to
Board vote or an information item that does not require immediate action.

In order to promote efficient meetings, the Board may bundle a number of items and act upon them
together by a single vote through the use of a consent agenda. Consent items shall be items of a
routine nature and items for which Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the
Superintendent recommends approval. When any Board member requests the removal of an item
from the consent agenda, the item shall be removed and given individual consideration for action
as a regular agenda item.

The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any consent
agenda item that has not been previously considered. (Government Code 54954.3)

Any Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and
deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting agenda. (Government Code
53635.7)

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)



All public communications with the Board are subject to requirements of relevant Board policies
and administrative regulations.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

Agenda Dissemination to Board Members

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each Board member shall be provided a copy of the
agenda and agenda packet, including the Superintendent or designee's report; minutes to be
approved; copies of communications; reports from committees, staff, and others; and other
available documents pertinent to the meeting.

When special meetings are called, Board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the
meeting, notice of the business to be transacted. (Government Code 54956)

Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may
confer directly with the Superintendent or designee to ask questions and/or request additional
information on agenda items. However, a majority of Board members shall not, outside of a
noticed meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take
action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications)
Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public

Any agenda and related materials distributed to the Board shall be made available to the public
upon request without delay. Only those documents which are disclosable public records under the
Public Records Act and which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session portion of a
regular meeting shall be made available to the public. (Government Code 54957.5)

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations
freely accessible to members of the public. (Government Code 54954.2)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall post the agenda on the homepage of the district
web site. The posted agenda shall be accessible through a prominent direct link to the current
agenda or to the district's agenda management platform in accordance with Government Code
54954.2. When the district utilizes an integrated agenda management platform, the link to that
platform shall take the user directly to the web site with the district's agendas, and the current
agenda shall be the first available. (Government Code 54954.2)



(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

If a document which relates to an open session agenda item of a regular Board meeting is
distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to a meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall
make the document available for public inspection at a designated location at the same time the
document is distributed to all or a majority of the Board. (Government Code 54957.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall mail a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents
constituting the agenda packet to any person who requests the items. The materials shall be
mailed at the time the agenda is posted or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the
Board, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 54954.1)

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid
for the calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of
each year. (Government Code 54954.1)

Persons requesting mailing of the agenda or agenda packet shall pay an annual fee, as determined
by the Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost of providing the service.

Any document prepared by the district or Board and distributed during a public meeting shall be
made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person
shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These requirements shall not apply

to a document that is exempt from public disclosure under the Public Records Act. (Government
Code 54957.5)

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any
writings distributed at the meeting available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54954.1)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35144 Special meetings

35145 Public meetings

35145.5 Right of public to place matters on agenda
GOVERNMENT CODE

6250-6270 Public Records Act

53635.7 Separate item of business

54954.1 Mailed agenda of meeting

54954.2 Agenda posting requirements; board actions
54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body
54954.5 Closed session item descriptions

54956.5 Emergency meetings

54957.5 Awvailability of public records



54960.2 Challenging board actions; cease and desist
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.160 Effective communications

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

COURT DECISIONS

Mooney v. Garcia, (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229
Caldwell v. Roseville Joint Union High School District, 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 66318
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

99 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 11 (2016)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003
WEB SITES

CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.csba.org

California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov

(3/08 11/12) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Bylaw

Minutes And Recordings

BB 9324
Board Bylaws

The Governing Board recognizes that maintaining accurate minutes of Board meetings helps
foster public trust in Board governance and provides a record of Board actions for use by district
staff and the public.

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The secretary of the Board shall keep minutes and record all official Board actions. The Board's
minutes shall be public records and shall be made available to the public upon request.
(Education Code 35145, 35163)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

(cf. 9122 - Secretary)

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

The minutes of Board meetings shall include, but not be limited to:

1. A notation of which Board members are present, in person or by teleconference, and
whether a member is not present for part of the meeting due to late arrival and/or early departure

(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)
(ct. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

2. A brief summary of the Board's discussion on each agenda topic, rather than a verbatim
record of each Board member's specific points of view during the discussion

3. A summary of the public comments made on agendized items and unagendized topics

4. The specific language of each motion and the names of the Board members who made and
seconded the motion

(cf. 9150 - Student Board Members)

5. Any action taken by the Board, and the vote or abstention on that action of each Board
member present (Education Code 35145; Government Code 54953)

Upon request by a student's parent/guardian, or by the student if age 18 or older, the minutes shall



not include the student's or parent/guardian's address, telephone number, date of birth, or email
address, or the student's name or other directory information as defined in Education Code 49061.
The request to exclude such information shall be made in writing to the secretary or clerk of the
Board. (Education Code 49073.2)

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute a copy of the "unapproved" minutes of the
previous meeting(s) with the agenda for the next regular meeting. The Board shall approve the
minutes as circulated or with necessary amendments.

Official Board minutes and recordings shall be stored in a secure location and shall be retained in
accordance with law.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)
Recording or Broadcasting of Meetings

The district may tape, film, stream, or broadcast any open Board meeting. At the beginning of the
meeting, the Board president shall announce that a recording or broadcasting is being made at the
direction of the Board and that the recording or broadcast may capture images and sounds of those
attending the meeting. As practicable, the recorder or camera shall be placed in plain view of
meeting participants.

Any district recording may be erased or destroyed 30 days after the meeting. Recordings made at
the direction of the Board during a meeting are public records and, upon request, shall be made
available for inspection by members of the public on district equipment without charge.
(Government Code 54953.5)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35012 Number of members; terms; student board members
35145 Public meetings

35163 Official actions, minutes and journals

35164 Vote requirements

49061 Student records; definitions

49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information
GOVERNMENT CODE

54952.2 Meeting defined

54953 Meetings

54953.5 Audio or video recording of proceedings

54953.6 Broadcasting of proceedings

54957.2 Closed sessions; clerk; minute book

54960 Violations and remedies



PENAL CODE

632 Unlawful to intentionally record a confidential communication without consent
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

16020-16027 Classification and retention of records

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014
WEB SITES

CSBA, Agenda Online: http://www.agendaonline.com

(7/08 4/14) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Suicide Prevention

BP 5141.52
Students

The Governing Board recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that
school personnel who regularly interact with students are often in a position to recognize the
warning signs of suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance. In an effort to reduce
suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Superintendent or designee shall
develop measures and strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention.

In developing measures and strategies for use by the district, the Superintendent or designee may
consult with school health professionals, school counselors, school psychologists, school social
workers, administrators, other staff, parents/guardians, students, suicide prevention experts, local
health agencies, mental health professionals, and community organizations.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

Such measures and strategies shall include, but are not limited to:

1. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention for teachers, school counselors,
and other district employees who interact with students

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

2. Instruction to students in problem-solving and coping skills to promote students' mental,
emotional, and social health and well-being, as well as instruction in recognizing and appropriately
responding to warning signs of suicidal intent in others

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

3 Methods for promoting a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of
connectedness with the school and that is characterized by caring staff and harmonious
interrelationships among students

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(ct. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(ct. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)



(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

4, The provision of information to parents/guardians regarding risk factors and warning signs
of suicide, the severity of the suicide problem among youth, the district's suicide prevention
curriculum, basic steps for helping suicidal youth, and/or school and community resources that can
help youth in crisis

5. Encouragement for students to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when
they are experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another
student's suicidal intentions

6. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts

7. Counseling and other postvention strategies for helping students, staff, and others cope in
the aftermath of a student's suicide

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who
are at high risk of suicide, including, but not limited to, students who are bereaved by suicide;
students with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students who are experiencing
homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and students who are lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth. (Education Code 215)

The Board shall review, and update as necessary, this policy at least every five years. (Education
Code 215)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

215 Student suicide prevention policies

215.5 Suicide prevention hotline contact information on student identification cards
216 Suicide prevention online training programs

32280-32289 Comprehensive safety plan

49060-49079 Student records

49602 Confidentiality of student information

49604 Suicide prevention training for school counselors

GOVERNMENT CODE

810-996.6 Government Claims Act

PENAL CODE

11164-11174.3 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

5698 Emotionally disturbed youth; legislative intent

5850-5883 Children's Mental Health Services Act

COURT DECISIONS

Corales v. Bennett (Ontario-Montclair School District), (2009) 567 F.3d 554



Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade
Twelve, 2008

Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS

School Connectedness:  Strategies for Increasing Protective Factors Among Youth, 2009
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGISTS PUBLICATIONS
Preventing Suicide: Guidelines for Administrators and Crisis Teams, 2015

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS

National Strategy for Suicide Prevention: Goals and Objectives for Action, rev. 2012
Preventing Suicide: A Toolkit for High Schools, 2012

WEB SITES

American Association of Suicidology: http://www.suicidology.org

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention: http://afsp.org

American Psychological Association: http://www.apa.org

American School Counselor Association: http://www.schoolcounselor.org

California Department of Education, Mental Health: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/cg/mh
California Department of Health Care Services, Suicide Prevention Program:
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/SuicidePrevention.aspx

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Mental Health: http://www.cdc.gov/mentalhealth
National Association of School Psychologists: http://www.nasponline.org

National Institute for Mental Health: http://www.nimh.nih.gov

Trevor Project: http://thetrevorproject.org

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration: http://www.samhsa.gov

(7/09 3/17) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District
Administrative Regulation

Suicide Prevention

AR 5141.52
Students

Student identification cards shall include the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone
number and may also include the Crisis Text Line and/or a local suicide prevention hotline
telephone number. (Education Code 215.5)

Staff Development

Suicide prevention training shall be provided to teachers, counselors, and other district employees
who interact with students. The training shall be offered under the direction of a district
counselor/psychologist and/or in' cooperation with one or more community mental health
agencies.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Materials for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services at the school
site and within the community, and when and how to refer youth and their families to those
services. Materials also may include programs that can be completed through self-review of
suitable suicide prevention materials. (Education Code 215)

Staff development shall include research and information related to the following topics:

1. The higher risk of suicide among certain groups, including, but not limited to, students who
are bereaved by suicide; students with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders;
students who are experiencing homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings such as foster
care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth

2. Individual risk factors such as previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of
depression or mental illness, family history of suicide or violence, feelings of isolation,

interpersonal conflicts, a recent severe stressor or loss, family instability, impulsivity, and other
factors

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

s Warning signs that may indicate depression, emotional distress, or suicidal intentions, such
as changes in students' personality or behavior and verbalizations of hopelessness or suicidal intent

4, Protective factors that may help to decrease a student's suicide risk, such as resiliency,



problem-solving ability, access to mental health care, and positive connections to family, peers,
school, and community

5. Instructional strategies for teaching the suicide prevention curriculum and promoting
mental and emotional health

6. School and community resources and services, including resources and services that meet
the specific needs of high-risk groups

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

7 Appropriate ways to interact with a student who is demonstrating emotional distress or is
suicidal and procedures for intervening when a student attempts, threatens, or discloses the desire
to die by suicide, including, but not limited to, appropriate protocols for monitoring the student
while the immediate referral of the student to medical or mental health services is being processed

8. District procedures for responding after a suicide has occurred
Instruction

The district's comprehensive health education program shall promote the healthy mental,
emotional, and social development of students and shall be aligned with the state content standards
and curriculum framework. Suicide prevention instruction shall be incorporated into the health
education curriculum at appropriate secondary grades and shall be designed to help students:

1. Identify and analyze signs of depression and self-destructive behaviors and understand
how feelings of depression, loss, isolation, inadequacy, and anxiety can lead to thoughts of suicide

2 Develop coping and resiliency skills and self-esteem

3 Learn to listen, be honest, share feelings, and get help when communicating with friends
who show signs of suicidal intent

4, [dentify trusted adults, school resources, and/or community crisis intervention resources
where youth can get help and recognize that there is no stigma associated with seeking services for
mental health, substance abuse, and/or suicide prevention

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Intervention

Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, or other adult when they are



experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's
suicidal intentions.

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. Whenever a staff member
suspects or has knowledge of a student's suicidal intentions based on the student's verbalizations or
act of self-harm, the staff member shall promptly notify the principal or school counselor, who
shall implement district intervention protocols as appropriate.

Although any personal information that a student discloses to a school counselor shall generally
not be revealed, released, referenced, or discussed with third parties, the counselor may report to
the principal or student's parents/guardians when there is reasonable cause to believe that
disclosure is necessary to avert a clear and present danger to the health, safety, or welfare of the
student or others within the school community. In addition, the counselor may disclose
information of a personal nature to psychotherapists, other health care providers, or the school
nurse for the sole purpose of referring the student for treatment. (Education Code 49602)

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

School employees shall act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license.
An employee is not authorized to diagnose or treat mental illness unless specifically licensed and
employed to do so. (Education Code 215)

Whenever schools establish a peer counseling system to provide support for students, peer
counselors shall receive training that includes identification of the warning signs of suicidal
behavior and referral of a suicidal student to appropriate adults.

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported, the principal or designee shall ensure student safety
by taking the following actions:

1. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary

2 Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being
actively threatened

3. Keeping the student under continuous adult supervision until the parent/guardian and/or
appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to intervene

4. Removing other students from the immediate area as soon as possible

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

The principal or designee shall document the incident in writing, including the steps that the school
took in response to the suicide attempt or threat.



(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

For any student returning to school after a mental health crisis, the principal or designee and/or
school counselor may meet with the parents/guardians and, if appropriate, with the student to
discuss re-entry and appropriate next steps to ensure the student's readiness for return to schoo] and
determine the need for ongoing support.

Postvention

In the event that a student dies by suicide, the Superintendent or designee shall communicate with
the student's parents/guardians to offer condolences, assistance, and resources. In accordance with
the laws governing confidentiality of student record information, the Superintendent or designee
shall consult with the parents/guardians regarding facts that may be divulged to other students,
parents/guardians, and staff.

The Superintendent or designee shall implement procedures to address students' and staff's grief
and to minimize the risk of imitative suicide or suicide contagion. The Superintendent or designee
shall provide students, parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or referrals
to community agencies as needed. School staff may receive assistance from school counselors or
other mental health professionals in determining how best to discuss the suicide or attempted
suicide with students.

Any response to media inquiries shall be handled by the district-designated spokesperson who
shall not divulge confidential information. The district's response shall not sensationalize suicide
and shall focus on the district's postvention plan and available resources.

(cf. 1112- Media Relations)

After any suicide or attempted suicide by a student, the Superintendent or designee shall provide
an opportunity for all staff who responded to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness of
the strategies used, and make recommendations for future actions.

(7/09 3/17) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District
Board Policy

Discipline

BP 5144
Students

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe, supportive, and positive school
environment which is conducive to student learning and achievement and desires to prepare
students for responsible citizenship by fostering self-discipline and personal responsibility. The
Board believes that high expectations for student behavior, use of effective school and classroom
management strategies, provision of appropriate intervention and support, and parent/guardian
involvement can minimize the need for disciplinary measures that exclude students from
instruction as a means for correcting student misbehavior.

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(ct. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

(ct. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop effective, age-appropriate strategies for maintaining
a positive school climate and correcting student misbehavior at district schools. The strategies
shall focus on providing students with needed supports; communicating clear, appropriate, and
consistent expectations and consequences for student conduct; and ensuring equity and continuous
improvement in the implementation of district discipline policies and practices.

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee's strategies for correcting student misconduct shall
reflect the Board's preference for the use of positive interventions and alternative disciplinary
measures over exclusionary discipline measures.

Disciplinary measures that may result in loss of instructional time or cause students to be
disengaged from school, such as detention, suspension, and expulsion, shall be imposed only when
required or permitted by law or when other means of correction have been documented to have
failed. (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)



(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

School personnel and volunteers shall not allow any disciplinary action taken against a student to
result in the denial or delay of a school meal. (Education Code 49557.5)

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)

Seclusion and behavioral restraint are prohibited as a means of discipline and shall not be used to
correct student behavior except as permitted pursuant to Education Code 49005.4 and in
accordance with district regulations. (Education Code 49005.2)

(cf. 5131.41 - Use of Seclusion and Restraint)

At all times, the safety of students and staff and the maintenance of an orderly school environment
shall be priorities in determining appropriate discipline. When misconduct occurs, staff shall
attempt to identify the causes of the student's behavior and implement appropriate discipline.
When choosing between different disciplinary strategies, staft shall consider the effect of each
option on the student's health, well-being, and opportunity to learn.

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules fairly, consistently, and in accordance with the district's
nondiscrimination policies.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 0415 - Equity)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as necessary to assist staff
in developing the skills needed to effectively and equitably implement the disciplinary strategies
adopted for district schools, including, but not limited to, knowledge of school and classroom
management skills and their consistent application, effective accountability and positive
intervention techniques, and the tools to form strong, cooperative relationships with
parents/guardians.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

District goals for improving school climate, based on suspension and expulsion rates, surveys of
students, staff, and parents/guardians regarding their sense of school safety and connectedness to
the school community, and other local measures, shall be included in the district's local control and
accountability plan, as required by law.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)



(cf. 3100 - Budget)

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board
regarding disciplinary strategies used in district schools in the immediately preceding school year
and their effect on student learning,

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

32280-32289 School safety plans

35146 Closed sessions

35291 Rules

35291.5-35291.7 School-adopted discipline rules
37223 Weekend classes

44807.5 Restriction from recess

48900-48926 Suspension and expulsion
48980-48985 Notification of parent/guardian
49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint
49330-49335 Injurious objects

49550-49564.5 Meals for needy students
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
CIVIL CODE

1714.1 Parental liability for child's misconduct
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

307 Participation in school activities until departure of bus
353 Detention after school

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

1751-1769j School Lunch Program

1773 School Breakfast Program

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Recent Legislation on Discipline: AB 240, Fact Sheet, March 2015

The Case for Reducing Out-of-School Suspensions and Expulsions, Fact Sheet, April 2014
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and
Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity during the School Day, Fact Sheet, 2009
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PROGRAM ADVISORIES
Classroom Management: A California Resource Guide for Teachers and Administrators of
Elementary and Secondary Schools, 2000



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January
2014

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Public Counsel: http://www.fixschooldiscipline.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

(414 12/17) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



Flournoy Elementary School District
Administrative Regulation

Discipline

AR 5144
Students

Site-Level Rules

Site-level rules shall be consistent with state law and Board policies and administrative
regulations. In developing site-level disciplinary rules, the principal or designee shall solicit the

participation, views, and advice of one representative selected by each of the following groups:
(Education Code 35291.5)

1L, Parents/guardians

2. Teachers

3 School administrators

4. School security personnel, if any

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

Annually, site-level discipline rules shall be reviewed and, if necessary, updated to align with any
changes in state law, district discipline policies and regulations, and/or goals for school safety and
climate as specified in the district's local control and accountability plan. A copy of the rules shall
be filed with the Superintendent or designee for inclusion in the comprehensive safety plan.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

School rules shall be communicated to students clearly and in an age-appropriate manner.

It shall be the duty of each employee of the school to enforce the school rules on student discipline.
(Education Code 35291.5)

Disciplinary Strategies

To the extent possible, staff shall use disciplinary strategies that keep students in school and
participating in the instructional program. Except when students' presence causes a danger to
themselves or others or they commit a single act of a grave nature or an offense for which
suspension or expulsion is required by law, suspension or expulsion shall be used only when other
means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. Disciplinary strategies may include,



but are not limited to:
12 Discussion or conference between school staff and the student and parents/guardians

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

2 Referral of the student to the school counselor or other school support service personnel for
case management and counseling

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

3 Convening of a study team, guidance team, resource panel, or other intervention-related
team to assess the behavior and develop and implement an individual plan to address the behavior
in partnership with the student and parents/guardians

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

4. When applicable, referral for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational
assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education program or a Section
504 plan

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

5. Enrollment in a program for teaching prosocial behavior or anger management
6. Participation in a restorative justice program
7. A positive behavior support approach with tiered interventions that occur during the school

day on campus

8. Participation in a social and emotional learning program that teaches students the ability to
understand and manage emotions, develop caring and concern for others, make responsible
decisions, establish positive relationships, and handle challenging situations capably

9. Participation in a program that is sensitive to the traumas experienced by students, focuses
on students' behavioral health needs, and addresses those needs in a proactive manner

10.  After-school programs that address specific behavioral issues or expose students to
positive activities and behaviors, including, but not limited to, those operated in collaboration with

local parent and community groups

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)



I1.  Recess restriction as provided in the section below entitled "Recess Restriction”

12.  Detention after school hours as provided in the section below entitled "Detention After
School"

13, Community service as provided in the section below entitled "Community Service"

14.  In accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation, restriction or

disqualification from participation in extracurricular activities
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular/Cocurricular Activities)
15.  Reassignment to an alternative educational environment

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

16.  Suspension and expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative
regulation

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

When, by law or district policy, other means of correction are required to be implemented before a

student could be suspended or expelled, any other means of correction implemented shall be
documented and retained in the student's records. (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Recess Restriction

Teachers may restrict a student's recess time only when they believe that this action is the most
effective way to bring about improved behavior. When recess restriction involves the withholding
of physical activity from a student, teachers shall try other disciplinary measures before imposing

the restriction. Recess restriction shall be subject to the following conditions:

Is The student shall be given adequate time to use the restroom and get a drink or eat lunch, as
appropriate.

2. The student shall remain under a certificated employee's supervision during the period of
restriction.

3 The student's teacher shall inform the principal of any recess restrictions imposed.



(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

Detention After School

Students may be detained for disciplinary reasons for up to one hour after the close of the
maximum school day, or until the departure of the school bus to which they have been assigned if
applicable. (5 CCR 307, 353)

The student shall not be detained unless the principal or designee notifies the parent/guardian.

Students shall remain under the supervision of a certificated employee during the period of
detention.

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)
Community Service

As part of or instead of disciplinary action, the Board, Superintendent, principal, or principal's
designee may require a student to perform community service during nonschool hours on school
grounds or, with written permission of the student's parent/guardian, off school grounds. Such
service may include, but is not limited to, community or school outdoor beautification, community
or campus betterment, and teacher, peer, or youth assistance programs. (Education Code
48900.6)

This community service option is not available for a student who has been suspended, pending
expulsion, pursuant to Education Code 48915. However, if the recommended expulsion is not
implemented or the expulsion itself is suspended, then the student may be required to perform
community service for the resulting suspension. (Education Code 48900.6)

Notice to Parents/Guardians and Students

At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians,
in writing, about the availability of district rules related to discipline. (Education Code 35291,
48980)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide written notice of disciplinary rules to transfer
students at the time of their enrollment in the district.

(11/12 4/14) 12/18
Board Approved 02/12/2019



